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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The early settlers conducted worship services in an 1856 log schoolhouse
until 1868 when they moved into their completed stone church. Its
construction began in 1864,

The exterior walls are two feet thick and of cut limestone laid in
coursed rubble masonry. The overall dimensions of the original
church measure approximately 36 by 60 feet. The nave is 36 X 45 feet
and the chancel area 15 X 25 feet, all within a ceiling height of

21 feet. A steeple 92 feet high rises over the church at the east
end in which a bell was placed in 1868,

The floor system consists of two huge timbers laid lengthwise between
the two walls with log joists placed perpendicular to them on top.
Between the log joists, sawed lumber joists span the width on top of
the beams. Nailed to the log and sawed joists are floor boards.

Certain modifications have been made to the structure. The main addition
has been a stone narthex 14 X 28 feet at the east end in 1941, A wooden
addition in the back houses the pastor's study and library. In the
interior, the walls were lathed and plastered in 1898, A furnace was
installed in 1891, followed by electric lights in 1904.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The significance of the First Lutheran Church rests on both historical and
architectural grounds. It is historically important for its association
with an outstanding pioneer leader of Norwegian immigrants in the Midwest,
who founded St. Ansgar, Pastor C.L. Clausen (1820-1892). Carlton Qualey
writes of Dgnish-born Clausen in his Norwegian Settlement in the United
Stages:
Clausen was popular and active in the pioneer Norwegian settlements,
and through his missionary activities and his writings he became widely
known. He was one of the founders of the Norwegian Evangelical
Tutheran Church in America and was one of the storm centers of early
church factional controversy. [On the controversial Civil War issue
of slavery, Clausen led the opposition to the view of Norwegian Synod
pastors that it was not in itself a sin to keep slaves,] In addition
to his religious work, Clausen engaged in considerable jourmalistic
activity. He was the first editor of the influential Norwegian-
American newspaper, Emigranten, and was also associated for a time in
the publication of a monthly Lutheran church paper, the Luthersk
maanedstidende.
As an important colonizer on behalf of Norwegian immigrants unacquainted
with the new country, he extensively investigated and publicized possible
areas for settlement. To one such area, St. Ansgar,Iowa, he personally led
in 1853 a forty wagon caravan of seventy-five settlers. Clausen staked out
120 acres for the townsite and called it St. Ansgar after the saint who
brought Christianity to.the "Far North of Europe." For the next twenty
years he served there as pastor, counsellor and civic and political leader
and, ascording to Theodore Blegen, he "took a leading part in the business
affairs of the colony."

Architecturally, the 1868 limestone building is a good example of vermacular
Gothic Revival style. Two of its most distinguishing features are the
lancet windows on the side of the church that are set in recessed panels,
and the bottom edge of the cornice that contains a Gothic arch motif
repeated on the spire. No single architect guided the buildings design or
construction. Reverend Clausen supplied what information he had concerning
building churches, and the chief stone masons, the Rauk Bros. and the
Sveidengard Bros., together with the two head carpenters, designed and
improvised as the building progressed. The resulting building, completed
in 1868, is of simple beauty and durability and is the oldest church in

M; tchell County.
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Addendum to #7 (ref. Para. 4, sentence 3)

The "wooden addition in the back" is a very small, one-story frame structure.
It has a brick foundation, gable roof, and is covered with wide vertical siding
painted white. Its date of construction is unknown, but it appears in a photo
dated 1875 so must have been built before then. It contains a pastor's study and

small meeting room.

Only the church building with its frame extension is included in this nomination.
There is a small modern garage/storage room toward the rear of the property, which
does not qualify for inclusion. The parish hall (b. 1960) is across the street
from the church on another lot.



